Mayor and Council Newsletter

Borough of Island Heights One Wanamaker Municipal Complex Post Office Box 797 Island Heights, New Jersey 08732-0797 (732) 270-6415 www.islandheightsborough.gov



Official Council Meeting Minutes

February 7, 2023

MAYOR DOYLE CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 7:00 P.M. AND READ THE FOLLOWING:

This Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Island Heights is Hereby Called to Order. Notice of this Meeting was Provided in Accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act by Publication in the Asbury Park Press and the Star Ledger on November 19, 2022 and Notice was Also Posted on the Bulletin Board at the Municipal Building, on the Borough Television Channel and the Borough Website.

Mayor Doyle introduced several dignitaries and members of the law enforcement communities as well as their family members. They were in attendance for the swearing in of Lt. Rutledge.

MAYOR DOYLE LED ALL IN THE:

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA MAYOR DOYLE REQUESTED THE:

ROLL CALL OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL AND BOROUGH PROFESSIONALS:

Council Member Baxter

Present

Absent

Council Member Fumo

Present

Council Member Gabriel

Present

Present

Absent

Absent

Council Member Pendleton

Present

Absent

Absent

Council Member Thompson

Present

Absent

Council Member Weber	<u>Present</u>	Absent
Mayor Doyle	Present	Absent

Borough Attorney Mr. Zabarsky **Present** Absent

MAYOR DOYLE OFFICIATED THE:

Swearing In of Lieutenant Paul Rutledge

Superior Officer – Island Heights Police Department

MAYOR DOYLE INTRODUCED A PRESENTATION ON THE:

Long Point Stabilization Project

Mayor Doyle recognized F. William Groff (Borough Engineer) and his associate – Jeremy

Edinger.

The engineers explained the scope and implementation of the current phase of the Stabilization project.

The addressed questions from members of the Governing Body and members of the public.

The engineers explained that the permitting process for the groin replacement is Underway and they hope that the groin construction can be completed by the end of 2023.

MAYOR DOYLE INTRODUCED:

ORDINANCE:

Ordinance 2023-01 – Final Reading – Public Hearing – Proposed Adoption

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF ISLAND HEIGHTS, COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, FIXING AND DETERMINING SALARIES AND HOURLY WAGES OF CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OF THE BOROUGH

Mayor Doyle read the following:

The Public Hearing on Proposed Ordinance 2023-01 is now open. Persons who Wish to be heard, please ask to be recognized and state your name for the Record.

Public Comments:

No comments

Mayor Doyle entertained a:

Motion to Close Public Hearing:

Motion: Mr. Weber Second: Mr. Fumo

Voice Vote Yes: Unanimous No:

Mayor Doyle entertained a:

Motion to Waive Reading and Adopt Proposed Ordinance 2023-01 as Introduced

Motion: Mr. Weber Second: Mr. Baxter

Voting Record:

Mr. Baxter	Mr. Fumo	Mr. Gabriel	Ms. Pendleton	Ms. Thompson	Mr. Weber	Mayor Doyle
Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	<u>Yes</u> /No	<u>Yes</u> /No	<u>Yes</u> /No
Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.

ORDINANCE 2023-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF ISLAND HEIGHTS, COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, FIXING AND DETERMINING SALARIES AND HOURLY WAGES OF CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OF THE BOROUGH

BE IT HEREBY ENACTED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF ISLAND HEIGHTS that the Following Hourly Wages and Salaries Shall Remain in Effect Until a Subsequent Salary and Wage Ordinance is Adopted:

SECTION 1: The Salary and Hourly Wage Ranges for Employees of the Borough Shall be as Follows:

<u>TITLE</u> <u>WAGES</u>

A. Affirmative Action Officer \$1,000.00 - \$2 B. Cable Television Officer \$1,000.00 - \$2 C. Chief Financial Officer \$2,500.00 - \$30 D. Code Enforcement Officer Minimum Wage - \$25.00 I E. Construction Official Per Control F. Construction Official (Deputy) Per Control G. Council President \$1,000.00 - \$2 \$2,500.00 - \$2 \$2,500.00 - \$2 \$30 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40	0,000.00
C. Chief Financial Officer \$2,500.00 - \$30 D. Code Enforcement Officer Minimum Wage - \$25.00 F E. Construction Official Per Contra F. Construction Official (Deputy)	0,000.00
 D. Code Enforcement Officer E. Construction Official F. Construction Official (Deputy) Minimum Wage - \$25.00 H Per Contraction Official (Deputy) 	
E. Construction Official Per Contra F. Construction Official (Deputy) Per Contra	\ TT
F. Construction Official (Deputy) Per Contra	er Hour
\ 1 3/	act
G. Council President \$1,000.00 - \$4	act
	4,000.00
H. Council Member \$1,000.00 - \$2	3,500.00
I. Deputy Treasurer \$2,500.00 - \$2	5,000.00
J. Fire Official \$2,500.00 - \$10	,000.00
K. Human Resources Manager \$2,500.00 - \$25	,000.00
L. JIF Fund Commissioner \$1,000.00 - \$2,00	00.000
M. Mayor \$1,000.00 - \$7	,000.00
N. Municipal Clerk Minimum Wage - \$25.00 P	er Hour
O. Municipal Clerk - Deputy Minimum Wage - \$25.00 P	er Hour
P. Municipal Court Administrator Minimum Wage - \$30.00 P	er Hour
Q. Municipal Court Administrator - Deputy Minimum Wage - \$28.00 P	er Hour
R. Municipal Court – Judge \$2,500.00 - \$20,	,000.00
S. OEM Coordinator \$2,500.00 - \$10,	,000.00
T. Payroll Clerk \$2,500.00 - \$25,	,000.00
U. Planning Board Secretary \$1,500.00 - \$4,0	00.00
V. Planning Board Secretary (Deputy) \$1,500.00 - \$3,0	00.00
W. Public Works - Clerk Minimum Wage - \$25.00 P	er Hour
X. Public Works - Director Per Contr	act
Y. Public Works - Foreman Per Contr	act
Z. Public Works - Laborer Per Contr	act
AA. Police Captain Per Contr	act
BB. Police Lieutenant Per Contr	act
CC. Police Officer Per Contr	act
DD. Police Officer - Class II Minimum Wage - \$20.00 Pe	r Hour
EE. Police Sergeant Per Contr	act
FF. Qualified Purchasing Agent \$2,500.00 - \$4,000	0.00
GG. Registrar of Vital Statistics Minimum Wage - \$25.00 P	er Hour
HH. Tax Assessor \$2,500.00 - \$25,000.	00
II. Tax Collector \$2,500.00 - \$25,000.	00

SECTION 2: The Foregoing Salaries and Hourly Wage Ranges Shall be Effective Immediately Upon the Adoption and Publication of this Ordinance.

SECTION 3: All Ordinances or Parts of Ordinances Heretofore Adopted in Connection with the Aforementioned Subject Matter are Hereby Repealed.

MAYOR DOYLE INTRODUCED:

ORDINANCE:

Ordinance 2023-02 – First Reading – Proposed Introduction

An Ordinance of the Borough of Island Heights, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey, Amending and Supplementing Chapter 17 of the Borough Code Entitled – Solid Waste Management

Mayor Doyle entertained a:

Motion to Waive Reading and Introduce Proposed Ordinance 2023-02

Motion: Ms. Pendleton Second: Mr. Weber

Voting Record:

Mr. Baxter	Mr. Fumo	Mr. Gabriel	Ms. Pendleton	Ms. Thompson	Mr. Weber	Mayor Doyle
Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	<u>Yes</u> /No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.

ORDINANCE 2023-02

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF ISLAND HEIGHTS, COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 17 OF THE BOROUGH CODE ENTITLED – SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

Chapter 17. Solid Waste Management

§ 17-1. COLLECTION OF GARBAGE AND REFUSE.

§ 17-1.1. Regulations Governing Preparation for Collection.

Language in [brackets] is thus deleted, language in **bold and italics** is thus new language.

The following regulations shall control the preparation of [refuse, trash and] garbage to be collected by [employees of] this Borough.

ſa.

Tree trimmings, logs, hedge clippings and similar materials shall be cut to a length not to exceed four (4') feet and shall be securely tied in bundles not more than two (2') feet thick and weighing not more than fifty (50) pounds each before being deposited just inside the curbline for collection.]

a.

The Borough shall provide each to each residential property one (1) garbage receptacle to allow for the collection of household garbage. Each residential property owner shall have the option of purchasing the use of a second garbage receptacle from the Borough at a cost to be set by Resolution by the Mayor and Council. All Borough provided garage receptacles are assigned to properties within the Borough and in all cases remain the property of the Borough.

[b.] b.

All garbage for pickup shall be placed in [a watertight metal or plastic container with a tight lid. The container shall be limited in size to a capacity of not more than fifty (50) pounds of contents] the garbage receptacle provided by the Borough. Garbage which is not placed in the receptacle provided by the Borough will not be collected. The container shall be kept in a serviceable condition at all times. On the days designated by the Borough for garbage collection, [Each container] the garbage receptacle shall be placed for collection just [inside] outside of the curb[line] with the Borough Seal and the metal bar facing the street.

[c.

Old lumber, shingles, wallboard or other old building material or debris shall be stacked and securely tied in bundles of not more than four (4') feet in length and weighing not more than fifty (50) pounds each. Such bundles shall be placed just inside the curbline for municipal collection.

d.

Each box, carton or other container must be flattened out and disassembled so as to be readily and easily handled. No part of any such article shall exceed four (4') feet in length or weigh more than fifty (50) pounds when deposited for municipal collection.

e.

All grass, weeds and similar growths shall be placed in a container so they may be readily emptied into the municipal collection vehicle.

f.

All broken glass or any other dangerous material shall be placed in a secure container to facilitate safe loading of broken glass or other dangerous material.

g.

Garbage shall not be mixed with or placed in the same container with any other refuse referred to in this section.

h.

Each container of garbage or trash shall be so staked or otherwise stabilized by the property owner, tenant or other person placing garbage or refuse for collection or from whose property such garbage or trash is proposed to be collected, that it does not upset or cannot be readily overturned, as by a dog or child.]

[i] b.

If any [container or] garbage *receptacle* [or refuse] is upset or overturned, the property owner, tenant or other person placing garbage for municipal collection, shall promptly clean up spilled garbage [or refuse] and restore it to a watertight container with a tight lid.

[j. No person shall place any of the items referred to in this subsection in any street or highway, or block the sidewalk/walkway, either for municipal collection or other disposal.]

[k] c.

All garbage receptacles shall be placed [at the curbline] *just outside the curb* not earlier than 4:00 p.m. on the day preceding collection, and the cans removed not later than 9:00 p.m. of the day of collection.

d.

Non-metal bulk garbage items shall be collected by appointment once per month by the Borough on a schedule to be set by the Director of Public Works and approved by the Mayor and Council. On each non-metal bulk garbage collection day, each residential property shall be permitted to have two (2) bulk items picked up by the Borough.

§ 17-1.2. Failure to Follow Regulations.

If any one (1) or more of the above regulations are not followed by the property owner, tenant or other person desiring municipal collection, the municipality or its employees shall not be obliged to make collection of the items concerning which any one (1) or more of the above regulations have not been followed. [When any of the items named in or referred to in subsection 17-1.1 hereof are placed at or just inside the curbline it shall be assumed the same are so placed for municipal garbage and refuse collection and disposal.]

§ 17-1.3. Prohibition Against Collecting Unprepared Materials.

No garbage shall be collected of the items referred to in subsection 17-1.1 hereof unless and until such items are prepared for collection and disposal as referred to and as directed in subsection 17-1.1 hereof.

§ 17-1.4. Report of Noncompliance.

If any Borough employee observes a noncompliance with any of the regulations in subsection **17-1.1**, he/she shall immediately notify the **Borough Office of Code Enforcement** [Police Department, who shall notify the adjacent tenant or landowner of the noncompliance and the reason for not making the collection. Such notice may be given personally or a written statement thereof shall be left on the premises].

§ 17-1.5. Further Regulations Not Restricted.

The adoption of this section shall not be construed as limiting the Borough from further regulating the pickup days of [trash and] garbage and [the removal of heavy and/or cumbersome trash] *and non-metal bulk garbage* items.

§ 17-1.6. Violations and Penalties.

Any person convicted of any of the provisions of this section shall be liable to the penalty stated in Chapter I, Section 1-5.

§ 17-1.7. Eligibility for Collection.

Residences [and institutional establishments], as defined in Borough Code § 17-2.3, Definitions, shall be eligible for the collection of garbage *and non-metal bulk garbage items* [and refuse].

§ 17-2. RECYCLING.

§ 17-2.1. Short Title.

This section shall be known and may be cited as the Recycling Regulations of the Borough of Island Heights.

§ 17-2.2. Authorization.

This section is adopted pursuant to the New Jersey Statewide Mandatory Source Separation Recycling Act, P.L. 1987, c. 102, which requires that each municipality in the State adopt an ordinance providing for the separation from the municipal solid waste stream of specified recyclable materials and establishing a collection system for the same.

§ 17-2.3. Definitions.

As used in this section:

ALUMINUM CANS

All empty aluminum beverage and food containers.

COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENTS

Those properties used primarily for commercial purposes, including, but not limited to, boat clubs, houses of worship, marinas, professional offices, repair shops, restaurants, and retail stores; and those multiple dwelling residential buildings containing more than four dwelling units.

COVERED PROJECT

A construction, renovation, or demolition project for which a building permit or a demolition permit is required, and for which a dumpster or roll-off container shall be placed on premises for the purpose of solid waste materials placement.

DESIGNATED RECYCLABLE MATERIALS

Those materials designated within the Ocean County District Solid Waste Management Plan to be source separated for the purpose of recycling.

DUAL STREAM

Shall mean:

a.

COMMINGLED

All plastic bottles; aluminum and steel cans.

b.

PAPER

Magazines, catalogues, junk mail, used writing paper, newsprint, cardboard, office and school paper. No chipboard or pizza boxes.

ELECTRONIC WASTE

A computer central processing unit and associated hardware including keyboards, modems, printers scanners and fax machines; a cathode ray tube, a cathode ray tube device, a flat panel display or similar video display device with a screen that is greater than four (4") inches measured diagonally and that contains one or more circuit boards, including a television, and cell phones.

FERROUS CONTAINERS

Empty steel or tin food or beverage containers.

GLASS CONTAINERS

Bottles and jars made of clear, green or brown glass. Expressly excluded are non-container glass, plate glass, blue glass and porcelain and ceramic products.

INSTITUTIONAL ESTABLISHMENTS

Those facilities that house or serve groups of people, including but not limited to, hospitals, schools, nursing homes, libraries and governmental offices.

MULTIFAMILY DWELLING

Any building or structure, or complex of buildings in which three (3) or more dwelling units are owner-occupied or rented or leased, or offered for rental or lease, for residential purposes (see N.J.S.A. 13:1E-99.13a) and shall include hotels, motels, or other guest houses serving transient or seasonal guests as those terms are defined under subsection (j) of section 3 of the "Hotel and Multiple Dwelling Law," P.L. 1967, c. 76 (C. 55:13-A-1 et seq.).

MUNICIPAL RECYCLING COORDINATOR

The person or persons appointed by the municipal Governing Body and who shall be authorized to, among other things, enforce the provisions of this section, and any rules and regulations which may be promulgated hereunder.

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE (MSW) STREAM

All solid waste generated at residential, commercial, and institutional establishments within the boundaries of the municipality of the Borough of Island Heights.

NEWSPAPERS

Paper of the type commonly referred to as newsprint and distributed at fixed intervals, having printed thereon news and opinions and containing advertisements and other matters of public interest. Expressly excluded, however, are newspapers which have been soiled. Newspapers shall be deemed soiled if they have been exposed to substances or conditions rendering them unusable for recycling.

RECYCLABLE MATERIAL

Those materials which would otherwise become solid waste, and which may be collected, separated, or processed and returned to the economic mainstream in the form of raw materials or products.

RESIDENCE

Any occupied single or multi-family dwelling having up to four (4) dwelling units per structure from which a municipal or private hauler collects solid waste.

SINGLE STREAM

The combination of commingled and paper listed above in one container. Do not include plastic bags, food waste, paper towels, paper napkins, pizza boxes, egg cartons, aluminum foil, plastic cups and utensils. No plastic other than bottles. No juice boxes or bags. No garbage.

SOLID WASTE

Garbage, refuse, and other discarded solid materials normally collected by a municipal or private hauler.

SOURCE-SEPARATED RECYCLABLE MATERIALS

Recyclable materials which are separated at the point of generation by the generator thereof from solid waste for the purposes of recycling.

SOURCE SEPARATION

The process by which recyclable materials are separated at the point of generation by the generator thereof from solid waste for the purposes of recycling.

WHITE GOODS

Appliances, air conditioners, refrigerators, stoves, hot water heaters, ice makers, and freezers.

§ 17-2.4. Establishment of Program.

There is hereby established a program for the mandatory separation of the following recyclable materials from the municipal solid waste stream by all persons within the Borough, hereinafter referred to as the "municipality":

1.

Aluminum cans.

2.

Ferrous containers.

3.

Glass containers.

4.

Newspapers.

5.

All other materials designated as being recyclable by the Ocean County Department of Solid Waste

§ 17-2.5. Separation of Recyclables and Placement for Collection [Disposal].

a.

The Borough shall provide to each commercial, institutional and residential property, one (1) recyclable materials receptacle for the collection of recyclable materials. Each property owner shall have the option of purchasing the use of a second recyclable materials receptacle at a cost to be set by Resolution by the Mayor and Council. All recyclable materials receptacles are assigned to properties within the Borough and in all cases remain the property of the Borough.

b.

Mandatory Source Separation. It shall be mandatory for all persons who are owners, tenants, or occupants of residential and nonresidential premises, which shall include but not be limited to retail and other commercial locations, as well as government, schools and other institutional locations within the municipality of the Borough of Island Heights, to separate designated recyclable materials from all solid waste. Designated recyclable materials shall be deposited separate and apart from other solid waste generated by the owners, tenants, or occupants of such premises and shall be placed [separately] at the curb in the recyclable materials receptacle provided by the Borough with the Borough Seal and the metal bar facing the street, [a manner and] on such days and times as may be hereinafter established by regulations promulgated by the Borough of Island Heights. Recyclable materials that are not placed in the receptacle provided by the Borough will not be collected.

[b.

Newspapers shall be bundled and tied with twine and placed at the curb or other designated area for collection at such times and dates as are established in the municipality's recycling regulations. The maximum weight of each bundle of newspaper shall not exceed thirty (30) pounds (approximately twelve (12") inches high).]

c.

Every commercial establishment and multifamily dwelling consisting of five or more dwelling units shall submit annually to the Municipal Recycling Coordinator proof of removal of designated recyclable materials from their premises, including the total weight and type of recycling material collected and recycled, and the vendor(s) providing said service.]

[d] c.

All [containers containing] recyclable materials *receptacles* shall be placed, prior to collection [between] just outside the curb [and the sidewalk, or in the absence of the curb and sidewalk, as near to the street as not to constitute a danger], where such receptacles shall be readily accessible to the collector without providing obstruction to pedestrians. The owner or occupant of the premises shall keep all receptacles clean and in safe handling condition. Receptacles [or other items to be disposed of] shall be placed as noted above any time after 4:00 p.m. of the day immediately preceding the day of collection, but no later than 6:00 a.m. of the day of collection. After collection, [any containers] all receptacles shall be removed from the curbside by no later than [7]9:00 p.m. of the day of collection.

d.

White goods (scrap metal) shall be collected by the Borough a minimum of once per month on a schedule to be set by the Director of Public Works and approved by the Mayor and Council. White goods placed for collection which contained refrigerant must be certified to be refrigerant free by a licensed provider prior to collection.

e.

All *recyclable materials* receptacles [or dumpsters] shall be kept clean and in a safe manner.

§ 17-2.6. Separation of Leaves and Placement for Disposal.

All persons within the municipality shall separate leaves from other solid waste generated at their premises and, unless the leaves are stored or recycled for composting or mulching on the premises, place the leaves at the curb or other designated area for collection at such times and dates and in the manner established by the municipality's recycling regulations.

§ 17-2.7. Alternative Collection of Recyclable Materials.

Any person may donate or sell recyclable materials to individuals or organizations authorized by the municipality in its recycling regulations. These materials may either be delivered to the individual's or organization's site or they may be placed at the curb for collection by the individual or organization on days not designated as recyclable material collection days in the municipality's recycling regulations. The individuals or organizations may not collect recyclable materials on or within the twenty-four (24) hours immediately preceding a regularly scheduled curbside collection day and shall, prior to June 1 of each year, provide written documentation to the municipality of the total amount of material recycled during the preceding calendar year.

§ 17-2.8. Collection by Unauthorized Persons.

It shall be a violation of this section for any unauthorized person or organization to collect, pick up or cause to be collected or picked up within the boundaries of the municipality any of the recyclable materials designated in subsection 17-2.4 of this section. Each such collection in violation of this section shall constitute a separate and distinct offense punishable as hereinafter provided.

§ 17-2.9. Enforcement and Administration.

The municipality, Recycling Coordinator and/or Superintendent of Public Works is hereby authorized and directed to establish and promulgate reasonable regulations detailing the manner, days and times for the collection of the recyclable materials designated in subsection 17-2.4 of this section and such other matters as are required to implement this section. Such regulations shall take effect only upon the approval of the Mayor and Council by adoption of a resolution implementing the same. The municipality, Recycling Coordinator and/or Superintendent of Public Works is hereby authorized and directed to enforce the provisions of this section and any implementing regulations adopted hereunder.

The Code Enforcement Official, the Department of Health, the Recycling Coordinator, the Property Maintenance Official, the Housing Officer and the Ocean County Department of Health are hereby individually and severally empowered to enforce the provisions of this section. An inspection may consist of sorting through containers and opening of solid waste bags to detect, by sound or sight, the presence of any recyclable material.

§ 17-2.10. Exemptions.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:1E-99.16(d), the Governing Body of a municipality may exempt persons occupying commercial or institutional premises within its municipal boundaries from the source separation requirements of the ordinance which requires persons generating municipal solid waste within its municipal boundaries to source separate from the municipal solid waste stream, the specified recyclable materials if those persons have otherwise provided for the recycling of all designated recyclable materials. To be eligible for an exemption pursuant to this chapter, a commercial or institutional generator of solid waste shall file an application for exemption with the Municipal Recycling Coordinator on forms to be provided for this purpose. The form shall include, at a minimum the following information: the name of the commercial or institutional entity; the street address location and lot and block designation; the name, official title and telephone number of the person making application on behalf of the commercial or institutional entity; the name, address, official contact person and telephone number of the facility which provides the service of recycling those designated recyclable materials, and a certification that the designated recyclable materials will be recycled, and that, at least on an annual basis, said recycling service provider or commercial/institutional generator shall provide written documentation to the Municipal Recycling Coordinator of the total number of tons collected and recycled for each designated material.

§ 17-2.11. Residential Dwelling Compliance Requirements.

The owner of any property shall be responsible for compliance with this section. For multifamily units, the management or owner is responsible for establishing and maintaining the recycling system, including collection of recyclable materials, in accordance with guidelines or regulations established by the appropriate municipal office. Violations and penalty notices will be directed to the owner or management, in those instances where the violator is not easily identifiable. The management shall issue notification and collection rules to the new tenants when they arrive and every six (6) months during their occupancy.

§ 17-2.12. Nonresidential Establishment Compliance Requirement.

a.

All commercial establishment generators of solid waste shall be required to comply with the provisions of this section.

b.

The arrangement for collection of designated recyclables hereunder shall be the responsibility of the commercial establishment property owner or their designee, unless the municipality provides for the collection of designated recyclable materials. All commercial establishments which provide outdoor litter receptacles and disposal service for their contents shall also provide receptacles for designated recyclable materials, for those materials commonly deposited, in the location of the litter receptacle, and shall provide for separate recycling service for their contents.

c.

Every commercial establishment shall report on an annual basis to the Recycling Coordinator, on such forms as may be prescribed, on recycling activities at their premises, including the amount of recycled material, by material type, collected and recycled, and the vendor or vendors providing recycling service.

§ 17-2.13. New Developments of Multi-Family Residential Units or Commercial, Institutional, or Industrial Properties. (Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:1E-99.13a and 99.16c.)

a.

Any application to the Planning Board of the municipality of the Borough of Island Heights, for subdivision or site plan approval for the construction of multi-family dwellings of three (3) or more units, single-family developments of fifty (50) or more units or any commercial, institutional, or industrial development for the utilization of one thousand (1,000) square feet or more of land, must include a recycling plan. This plan must contain at a minimum, the following:

1.

A detailed analysis of the expected composition and amount of solid waste and recyclables generated at the proposed development; and

2.

Locations documented on the application's site plan that provide for convenient recycling opportunities for all owners, tenants, and occupants. The recycling area shall be of sufficient size, convenient location and contain other attributes (signage, lighting, fencing, etc.) as may be determined by the Municipal Recycling Coordinator.

b.

Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy by the municipality of the Borough of Island Heights, the owner of any new multi-family housing or commercial, institutional, or industrial development must supply a copy of a duly executed contract with a hauling company for the purposes of collection and recycling of source-separated recyclable materials, in those instances where the municipality does not otherwise provide this service.

c.

Provision shall be made for the indoor, or enclosed outdoor, storage and pickup of solid waste, to be approved by the Municipal Engineer.

§ 17-2.14. Prohibition of the Collection of Solid Waste Mixed With Recyclable Materials.

a.

It shall be unlawful for solid waste collectors to collect solid waste that is mixed with, or contains visible signs of, designated recyclable materials. It is also unlawful for solid waste collectors to remove for disposal those bags or containers of solid waste which visibly display a warning notice sticker or some other device indicating that the load of solid waste contains designated recyclable materials.

b.

It shall be the responsibility of the resident or occupant to properly segregate the uncollected solid waste for proper disposal or recycling. Allowing such unseparated solid waste and recyclables to accumulate will be considered a violation of this section and the local sanitary code.

c.

Once placed in the location identified by this section, or any rules or regulations promulgated pursuant to this section, no person, other than those authorized by the municipality, shall tamper with, collect, remove, or otherwise handle designated recyclable materials.

§ 17-2.15. Construction, Renovation and Demolition Debris Recovery Plan.

A debris recovery plan shall be filed with the Municipal Recycling Coordinator prior to the commencement of any activity for which municipal approval as further identified above. The debris recovery plan shall identify the types and estimated quantities of construction and demolition debris to be generated from the project, how each material will be managed, and the name of each facility or service provider that the entity will use to manage each material. The plan shall further detail how the applicant shall ensure that a minimum of fifty (50%) percent of the materials to be generated will be separated and recycled.

§ 17-2.16. Review of Debris Recovery Plan.

a.

Approval. A debris recovery plan shall be reviewed by the Municipal Recycling Coordinator, and approved if it provides for all the information required by this section. An approved debris recovery plan shall be marked "Approved" and returned to the owner of the entity which submitted the plan.

b.

Denial. A debris recovery plan shall not be approved if it does not provide all of the information required by this section. If a debris recovery plan is not approved, the owner of the entity, which submitted the plan, shall be notified in writing that the plan has been rejected, including the reasons for the rejection. In order to obtain the building or demolition permit sought, the owner of the entity, which will carry out the construction, renovation, or demolition project, shall make the required changes and resubmit the debris recovery plan to the Municipal Recycling Coordinator.

§ 17-2.17. Diversion Requirement Adjustment.

a.

Application. If the owner of an entity carrying out a covered project experiences circumstances that make it infeasible to comply with the diversion requirement cited in this section, the owner of the entity may apply for an adjustment. The owner shall indicate in writing why it is infeasible to divert fifty (50%) percent of the materials being generated from the covered project and specify what percentage of diversion could be achieved. Increased costs to the owner of the entity carrying out the covered project will not be an acceptable justification for an adjustment.

b.

Review. The Municipal Recycling Coordinator shall review the information supplied by the owner. If warranted the Municipal Recycling Coordinator shall attempt to contact the owner to discuss possible ways of meeting the diversion requirement.

c.

Granting of an Adjustment. If the Municipal Recycling Coordinator determines that it is infeasible for the entity carrying out a covered project to divert fifty (50%) percent of the generated construction and demolition (C&D) debris from the covered project, the percent of diversion required shall be adjusted. The owner shall be notified in writing of the adjusted diversion requirement. The owner of the entity carrying out the covered project shall be required to divert the percent of C&D debris by the adjustment.

d.

Denial of Adjustment. If the Municipal Recycling Coordinator determines that it is feasible for the owner of an entity carrying out a covered project to meet the diversion requirement cited in this section, the owner shall be notified in writing of the denial of the diversion requirement adjustment.

§ 17-2.18. Debris Recovery Plan Reporting Requirement.

a.

Documentation. Upon completion of the covered project, but before the final inspection the owner of the entity carrying out a covered project shall submit in person or by certified mail to the Municipal Recycling Coordinator, the documentation required to demonstrate that the applicant has met the diversion requirement. The required documentation shall include the following:

1.

A completed debris recovery report, signed by the owner of the entity carrying out a covered project, indicating the quantity of each material generated during the covered project diverted or disposed,

2.

Receipts from all facilities or service providers utilized to divert and dispose materials generated during the covered project, and

3.

Any additional information that the owner of the entity carrying out the covered project believes is relevant to determining compliance with the diversion requirement.

§ 17-2.19. Appeal.

An owner of the entity carrying out the covered project may appeal a determination of failure to comply under this section to the municipality within thirty (30) days of the decision or determination. The appeal shall be in writing and shall state the facts and basis for the appeal. A decision by the (department where appeal is to be filed) shall be final.

§ 17-2.20. Enforcement.

The Code Enforcement Official, the Police Department, the Department of Health, the Recycling Coordinator, the Property Maintenance Official, and the Housing Officer are hereby individually and severally empowered to enforce the provisions of this section. The respective enforcing official may, in his or her discretion, post warning stickers for a first offense. An inspection may consist of dumping and opening of solid waste bags or containers to detect, by sound or sight, the presence of any recyclable material.

§ 17-2.21. Violations and Penalties.

a.

Any person who violates any one (1) or more subsections of this section shall be subject to a fine of not less than two thousand five hundred (\$2,500.00) dollars and not more than ten thousand (\$10,000.00) dollars for each separate offense and/or confinement in the Ocean County Jail for a period of not more than ninety (90) days. The Municipal Court shall have the option of imposing community service for a violation of any offense under this section.

b.

Each and every day in which a violation of any of the provisions of this section exists shall constitute a separate offense.

c.

Fines levied and collected pursuant to the provisions of this section shall be immediately deposited into the Municipal Recycling Trust Fund (or equivalent). Monies into the MRTF (or equivalent) shall be used for the expenses of the municipal recycling program.

§ 17-3. YARD WASTE COLLECTION PROGRAM.

§ 17-3.1. Purpose.

The purpose of this Code section is to establish a yard waste collection and disposal program with the Borough of Island Heights, so as to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, and to proscribe penalties for failure to comply.

§ 17-3.2. Definitions.

For the purposes of this section, the following terms, phrase, words, and their derivations shall have the meanings stated herein unless their use in the text of this section clearly demonstrates a different meaning. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, words used in the plural number include the singular number, and words used in the singular number include the plural number. The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely discretionary.

CONTAINERIZED

The placement of yard waste in a trash can, bucket, bag, or other vessel, such as to prevent the yard waste from spilling or blowing out onto the street and coming into contact with stormwater.

PERSON

Any individual, corporation, company, partnership, firm, association, or political subdivisions of this State subject to municipal jurisdiction.

STREET

Any street, avenue, boulevard, road, parkway, viaduct, drive, or other way, which is an existing State, County, or municipal roadway, and includes the land between the street lines, whether improved or unimproved, and may comprise pavement, shoulders, gutters, curbs, sidewalk, parking areas, and other areas within the street lines.

YARD WASTE

Leaves [shrubs, branches and grass clippings.]

17-3.3 Collection of Yard Waste

a.

The Borough shall collect containerized yard waste from residential properties a minimum of two (2) times per year (spring and fall) per a schedule set by the Director of Public Works and approved by the Mayor and Council.

b.

Yard waste shall be containerized in a manner prescribed by the Borough and placed at the curb for collection no more than five (5) days prior to the scheduled collection date.

§ 17-3.[3] *4. Prohibited Conduct.*

It shall be a violation of this Code section for any person or property owner to allow, permit or perform any of the following:

a.

Sweeping, raking, blowing, or otherwise placing yard waste that is not containerized at the curb or along the street is prohibited except unless said yard waste is immediately pricked up or removed by the property owner and/or person responsible for such placement. Placement of yard waste within ten (10) feet from any storm drain inlet is prohibited.

b.

Placement of containerized yard waste at the curb or along the street sooner [then] *than* seven (7) days before the scheduled pickup is prohibited.

c.

Placement of yard waste at the curb or along the street at any time or in any other manner than which is permitted by the Borough Code is a violation of this Code section.

d.

If yard waste placement is made or occurs and such yard waste placement is in violation of this Code section, the party responsible for placement of the yard waste and the owner of the property from which the yard waste came shall be deemed in violation of this Code section.

e.

Each day following the issuance of any summons or citation for a violation of this section shall constitutes a continuing violation, regardless of whether a new summons or citation has been issued.

§ 17-3.4. Enforcement.

This Code section shall be enforced by the Police Department of the Borough of Island Heights, as well as the Code Official of the Borough of Island Heights, and/or his designee, and the Zoning Official of the Borough of Island Heights, and/or his official designee.

§ 17-3.5. Penalties.

a.

Any person, or persons, who shall violate any of the terms or provisions of this section or who shall commit or do any act or thing which is prohibited by this section, shall, upon conviction thereof, be liable for the penalty stated in Chapter I, Section 1-5 of this Code.

b.

Each day following the issuance of any summons or citation for a violation of this section shall constitute a continuing violation, regardless of whether a new summons or citation has been issued, and any person who has violated this section of the Code may be subject to imposition of a penalty under paragraph a of this subsection for each additional day in violation.

§ 17-3.6. Eligibility for Collection.

Residences [and Institutional establishments], as defined in Borough Code § 17-2.3, Definitions, shall be eligible for collection by a Yard Waste Collection Program.

MAYOR DOYLE INTRODUCED:

ORDINANCE:

First Reading – Proposed Introduction

ORDINANCE 2023-03

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF ISLAND HEIGHTS, COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING BOROUGH CODE CHAPTER 4 ENTITLED – POLICE REGULATIONS

Mayor Doyle entertained a:

Motion to Waive Reading and Introduce Proposed Ordinance 2023-03

Motion: Ms. Thompson Second: Ms. Pendleton

Voting Record:

Mr. Baxter	Mr. Fumo	Mr. Gabriel	Ms. Pendleton	Ms. Thompson	Mr. Weber	Mayor Doyle
<u>Yes</u> /No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.

ORDINANCE 2023-03

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF ISLAND HEIGHTS, COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING BOROUGH CODE CHAPTER 4 ENTITLED – POLICE REGULATIONS

§ 4-8. BOAT TRAILERS.

Language in [brackets] is thus deleted, language in **bold and italics** is thus new language.

§ 4-8.1. Definitions.

As used in this section:

BOAT TRAILER

Every vehicle, with or without motive power, designed for carrying a boat or vessel and for being drawn by a motor vehicle. A boat trailer shall include those which are attached or hitched to a motor vehicle.

CALENDAR YEAR

January 1 to December 31 of each year.

§ 4-8.2. Prohibition.

No person shall park or store, for more than [one (1)] two (2) seventy-two (72) hour periods, a boat trailer, [or any trailer as defined in N.J.S.A. 39:1-1,] at any time upon any of the streets in the Borough. For the purposes of this section, the seventy-two (72) hour period exception, as stated herein, shall be permitted only [once] twice in any calendar year. One seventy two (72) hour exception period shall be permitted between March 1 and June 30 of each calendar year. A second seventy two (72) hour exception period shall be permitted between September 1 and November 30 of each calendar year.

§ 4-8.3. Violations and Penalties.

Unless another penalty is expressly provided by New Jersey statute, every person convicted of a violation of a provision of this section or any supplement thereto shall be liable to a penalty upon conviction, as stated in Chapter I, Section 1-5.

MAYOR DOYLE INTRODUCED THE:

APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES

Resolution 2023-24 Approving the Proposed Minutes for the Reorganization

Meeting and the Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council Conducted on January 3, 2023 (By Title)

Motion: Mr. Weber Second: Mr. Fumo

Comments/Discussion: None

Voting Record:

Mr. Baxter	Mr. Fumo	Mr. Gabriel	Ms. Pendleton	Ms. Thompson	Mr. Weber	Mayor Doyle
Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.

MAYOR DOYLE INTRODUCED THE RESOLUTIONS ON THE CONSENT AGENDA:

Resolution 2023-25 Approving the Setting of the Fee to be Charged by

the Borough to Property Owners for the Use of a

Second Garbage or Recycling Receptacle

Motion: Mr. Weber Second: Ms. Pendleton

Resolution 2023-26 Approving the Use of Grant Funds for the Purchase

of Certain Fire Protection Equipment from Continental Fire and Safety of Hamilton, New Jersey as a Proprietary Purchase in an Amount Not

to Exceed \$9,998.00

Motion: Mr. Fumo Second: Ms. Thompson

Resolution 2023-27 Approving the Purchase of Garbage and Recyclable

Materials Receptacles In Keeping with the Mayor's Emergency Declaration from Schafer Plastics of Charlotte, North Carolina in an Amount Not to

Exceed \$6,757.00

Motion: Ms. Pendleton Second: Mr. Weber

Resolution 2023-28 Approving the Refund of a Permit Fee (Application

Withdrawn) in the Amount of \$25.00 on Block 1 –

Lot 11 – 2 Lake Avenue to Linda Grinfelds

Motion: Mr. Weber Second: Ms. Thompson

Resolution 2023-29 Authorizing the Mayor and the Borough Clerk to

enter into a Contract with Lexipol of Frisco, Texas for the Provision of Consulting Services to the Island Heights Police Department in an Amount Not to Exceed \$11,900.00 (By Title)

Amount Not to Exceed \$11,900.00 (By 11th

Motion: Mr. Baxter Second: Ms. Pendleton Resolution 2023-30 Approving the Redemption of Tax Sale Certificate

number 22-00003 in the Amount of \$4,859.18

payable to; Fig 20, LLC of Newark, New Jersey

Motion: Mr. Weber Second: Mr. Fumo

Resolution 2023-31 Authorizing the Mayor and the Borough Clerk to

Execute a Shared Services Agreement with the

Ocean

County Prosecutors Office for the Fatal Accident

Support Team (FAST) Program

Motion: Mr. Weber Second: Mr. Baxter

Resolution 2023-34 Approving and Expressing the Support of the

> Mayor and Council for the Efforts of the Island Heights Green Team in Seeking a Recertification of the Silver Level of the Borough from Sustainable

New Jersey

Motion: Ms. Thompson Second: Ms. Pendleton

Comments/Discussion by Council Members of Items on the Consent Agenda:

Ms. Thompson - Commented on the Lexipol consulting contract for our Police Department that will assist the Department in the maintenance of their accreditation as well as the purchase of the smaller sixty five gallon receptacles that will be made available to residents later in the spring.

Comments/Discussion from the Floor on Items on the Consent Agenda:

Linda Grinfelds – Commented on the colors of the receptacles being issued by the Borough.

Mayor Doyle entertained a:

Motion for Adoption of all of the Resolutions on the Consent Agenda:

Motion: Mr. Weber Second: Ms. Thompson

Voting Record:

Mr. Baxter	Mr. Fumo	Mr. Gabriel	Ms. Pendleton	Ms. Thompson	Mr. Weber	Mayor Doyle
Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No	Yes/No
Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.

MAYOR DOYLE INTRODUCED THE:

BILL LIST AND PROCUREMENTS

Resolution 2023-32 Approving Payment of all of the Items on the Bill

List Submitted by the Purchasing Agent (By Title)

Motion: Ms. Thompson Second: Ms. Pendleton

Discussion/Comments: None

Voting Record:

					Ms. Thompson		Mayor Doyle
1	<u>Yes</u> /No	<u>Y es</u> /No	Yes/No	<u>Yes</u> /No	<u>Yes</u> /No	<u>Yes</u> /No	<u>Yes</u> /No
	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.	Abs.

MAYOR DOYLE INTRODUCED THE:

Council Member Reports

Mr. Baxter – We had a very successful meeting with our new and existing Municipal Court Staff including our Court Administrator and Prosecutor as well as the Borough Clerk and Police Commanders. The meeting focused on the implementation of the new e-tickets system As well as strategies to collect past due obligations.

Ms. Pendleton – Our DPW staff have been occupied with service calls related to our sanitary system on the west end of town. Two of our lift stations had to be taken offline for service.

DPW staff are delivering the recycling and garbage receptacles throughout the Borough, please get them off the street as soon after delivery as possible.

Mr. Fumo – Mr. Platt has updated the Borough Emergency Operations Plan which must be done every four years. Our updated plan has been approved by the State.

Our First Aid Squad reports that they have already responded to eleven calls in the Borough this year and seventeen calls total, they are always seeking new members/volunteers.

The construction of the new Fire House continues to make great progress and they hope to occupy the building this spring.

Mr. Weber – Our Elementary School is having their heart challenge month and wrapping up their winter standardized testing. Registration for new kindergarten students will start later this month and registration for the new Pre-K program is underway with fifteen slots available.

The Central Regional Middle and High Schools continue to expand their course selections and the high school is pleased to be offering the jump start program with Ocean County College. The High School Drama Club will be performing Grease this spring.

Ms. Thompson – I attended to the MLK celebration at our Elementary School and the organizers did a great job as did the student presenters.

Our Construction Office is continuing the work of closing old permits, those that still require an inspection will result in a letter to the property owner. If you receive one, please respond and schedule an inspection, it will only take a few minutes to assure that your work was completed safely.

Our Environmental Committee has a composting drive underway and they are seeking grant funds for trees to add around the Borough. They will be working with our Green Team to have the Borough recertified as Silver Level with Sustainable New Jersey. Tanara Hall was recognized at the meeting for her work on these projects and her recent presentation at the New Jersey League of Municipalities Conference.

Our Post Office still has no full time Postmaster, only part time.

Community Garden Participants, please stop by the Borough Office and pay your fee and pick up your information package for this year.

Mayor Doyle - Our public works and infrastructure projects will start up again as spring arrives. We will be paving Holly Ave. and Lake Drive this year and preparing for Garden, Garfield and Maple Ave. next year. We will be asking the County to complete the paving of Ocean Ave.

DPW will continue the replacement of our Boardwalk and we hope to plant forty new trees this year on Borough property to enhance our tree canopy.

MAYOR DOYLE INTRODUCED THE PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR (Public Comment):

Linda Grinfelds – Commented on the exteriors of Borough vehicles, the purchase of garbage and recyclable materials receptacles by the Borough and security procedures at Borough Buildings.

Mayor Doyle entertained a Motion to Adjourn, the Meeting was adjourned at 7:55 P.M. by Unanimous Consent.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sean Asay Borough Clerk